CALL TO ORDER

Invocation — Rev. George Locklear, Trinity Methodist Church
Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor’s Presentations

a. Recognition of Coach Marcus Thompson and the Fairmont High School Women's
Basketball Team

Public Hearing — Code Enforcement Ordinances

. Approval of Agenda

Il Public Comment Period/Citizens Appearance - Anyone wishing to come before the
board must place their name and topic of discussion on the list before the meeting
begins. Public Comment period is thirty minutes, and each speaker will be given five
minutes to speak. There will be no discussion with the beard.

il Consent Agenda — These items will be adopted with one vote.

Approval of Minutes — Regular Meeting, February 21, 2023

Crdinance 23-229 — Budget Amendment #7 - $3,945.00

Ordinance 23-230 — Close Main Street for May Day Fun Festival on May 6
Ordinance 23-231 — Close Main Street for Summer Business Expo on May 20

oo o

V. Old Business

a. Adopt revised Code Enforcement ordinances:
»  Ordinance 23-225 Chapter 91: Public Nuisances
s  Ordinance 23-226 Chapter 91.20: Abandened, Junked, and Nuisance Vehicles
o Ordinance 23-227 Chapter 1562: Minimum Housing Standards
« Ordinance 23-228 Chapter 152A: Non-Residential Buildings or Structures Standards

V. New Business

a. Resolution 23-03 — Approving CDBG Compliance Plans and Grant Project Ordinance
23-232 for FY 2022 CDBG Neighborhood Revitalization Program.

b, State Water Infrastructure Authority {SWIA) Grant Award Announcement - $350,000
Stormwater Planning

¢. Discuss Curfew Ordinance Revision and set Public Hearing Date for April 18, 2023

VI Comments
a. Board of Commissioners and Mayor
b. Town Manager

VIl Executive/Closed Session — Property acquisition NCGS 143-318.11(5)
V.  Adjournment
VII. Community Announcements

a. Saturday, March 25 — Community Trash/Litter Cleanup, 10:00 a.m., various locations
b. Wednesday, March 29 — Town Employees luncheon, 12:30 p.m., Fire Hall.
¢. Thursday, April & — Fairmont Planning Board meeting, 6:00 p.m., Heritage Center.

Respectfully submitted, .
Sl C JErAY

Jerome Chestnuf, Town Manager



Regular Mccting — February 21, 2023

The Fairmont Board of Commissioners held their regular mecting on Tuesday, February 21, 2023,
at 6:00 p.m. in the Fairmont-South Robeson Heritage Center with Mayor Charles Kemp presiding,
Commissionets present were J.J. McCree, Terry Evans, Melvin Ellison, Heather Seibles and
Clarence McNeill, Jr. Commissioner Jan Tedder-Rogers was absent. Staff present included Town
Manager Jerome Chestnut, Town Clerk Jenny Larson, Town Attorney Jessica Scott, Public Works
Director Ronnie Seals, Police Chief Jonathan Edwards, Officer Mason Locklear, Officer Carlie
Sanderson, and Officer Denzel Burney. Several citizens were also present including Bishop Jerrod
Moultrie, James Jones, David Richardson, Copeland Jacobs, and.Joshua Outlaw.

Call to Order and Invocation

Mayor Charles Kemp called the meeting to otder at
Oak Grove Baptist Church gave the invocation, -

Mavor’s Presentations

Mayor Kemp recognized Thunder Zor
first place at the War Angel Challeng

Introduction of new Po_ i

Item F under New Business — CDBG-NR Grant
Gommigsioner Evans made a motion to approve the
onded the motion and it passed unanimously.

Public Comment Period/Citizéns Appearance

There was no public coming 1s month.

Conscent Agenda

Upon motion by Commissioner Evans and seconded by Commissioncr Ellison, it was
unanimousty voted to adopt the following consent agenda items:



Page 2 — Regular Mecting, February 21, 2023

a. Approval of Minutes — Regular Meeting, January 17, 2023, and Issue Forum, January
24,2023

b. Ordinance 23-223 — Budget Amendment #6 - $6,000

c. Ordinance 23-224 — Project Budget North Carolina Youth Violence Prevention Grant

A signed copy of the ordinances are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of these
minutes.

Old Business
There was no old business this month.
New Business

Comprehensive Plan Vision Statement adopt

I “gic plans. The
investment work undertaken by the

d stewardslup "

e Comprehensive Plan Vision Statement,
ed unanimously,

completing a+
Commissione
feedback presented-

1, Staff for thenext six years (2023-2028). It will be reviewed annually, and
.the Cominissioners on progress. The mission statement of the plan is to
promote and support a high quality of life for the residents and businesses of Fairmont. The values
of the plan are accountabili lusiveness, professionalism and sustainability. There are four
multi-year goals, and each goal has a set of strategies and timelines for implementation. The four
goals for Fairmont are: Financial Stability, Quality of Life, Comununity and Economic
Development and Community Engagement.

Commissioner Evans made a motion to adopt thc Fairmont Strategic Plan 2023-2028,
Commissioner Seibles seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. A copy of the plan is
hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of thesc minutes.



Page 3 — Regular Mecting, February 21, 2023

StRAP Decbris Removal Bid approval

Bids for the Town’s NCAGR StRAP Program Strcamflow Rehabilitation project were received
on Tuesday, January 24, 2023, at the Fairmont Town Hall. The project included a base bid for
work along Old Field Swamp and two additive alternates for additional work in areas on the west
side of Town. Four (4) bids were received ranging from a low of $39,664.00 to a high of
$3006,000.00, The low bid of $39,664.00 from Millers Tree & Debris Removal Service was
considered a non-responsive bid and rejected due to their bid. price not including costs for
appropriate removal and disposal of debris as indicated ing: d documents. Thercfore, the
lowest responsive bid of $134,000.00 was submitted by Stocks Landscaping of Tabor City, NC.
The lowest responswe bidder, Stocks Land%apmg, has omplctcd scveral successful plOJeCtS

“Plan. The RBDG Program is a
argeted technical assistance, training, and
pansion of small and emerging private

compeutwe grant progr
other '1ct1V1t10 le dmg

0.adopt Resolution 23-02 — USDA RBDG Grant Submission
otided the motion and it passed unanimously, A signed copy

Discuss Dratt Co
Chapter 91: Public B |

Nuisance Vehicles, Ordinanée 23-227 Chapter 152 Minimum Housmg Standards, and Ordmdnce
23-228 Chapter 152A: NonizRésidential Buildings or Structures Standards

The following Ordinances have been updated to reflect changes mandated by Chapter 160D of the
North Carolina General Statutes:

o Chapter 91: Public Nuisances

o Chapter 91.20: Abandoned, Junked, and Nuisancc Vehicles

e Chapter 152: Minimum Housing Standards

o Chapter 152A: Non-Residential Buildings or Structures Standards



Page 4 — Regular Meeting, February 21, 2023

These ordinances have been updated by an outside consultant (N-Focus, Inc) and have been
reviewed by the Town Attorney, Police Chief, and local Magistrate, These ordinanccs were
cmailed to the Mayor and Commissioners on February 15, 2023. These drafts will be published
on the town’s website and copies made available at Town Hall for citizens. The Board of
Commissioners need to review these ordinances and set a Public Hearing and tentative adoption
date for March 21, 2023, with enforcement of these ordinances set to begin on April 2, 2023,

esday, March 21, 2023, at 6:00
the town’s code enforcement
it passed unanimously.

Commissioner Ellison made a motion to set a Public Hearing fi
p.m, in the Heritage Center {or the purpose of discussing upd
ordinances. Commissioner McNeill seconded the moti

CDBG-NR Grant Administration Services Bid Approya

Grant Administration Services bids for the $
Neighborhood Revitalization were recetved on’
Hall. Four bids were reccived ranging from a lo

0 Community De lopment Block Grant —
ay, February 20, 2023, at the Fairmont Town
90,000 {0 a hlgh 0f$175--000 The low bid

ion fo award the CDBG-NR
Qunt-20f$143,000.

DBG-NR Grant Administration
Ellison seconded the motion and it passed

Commissioner Evans
Services to The Adams
unanimously

d stated that code enforcement is necessary for the
Commissioner Evans still wants to strengthen the curfew
announced the Fairmont ABC store will be undergoing

Mayor Kemp made the fol

1 am certain that I’'m not the only person in this room who has waited for the introduction
and presentation of the newly revised codes at this meeting. For the first time in years our
government can now begin the process of true revitalization and self-improvement both
commercially and residentially. No longer, after you board members adopt these codes,
will any of us elected officials have to tell a citizen “We’re waiting on our new codes”.
Once you vote adoption, Mr. Chestnut can begin his long and well thought out plan to
implement these codcs and when that process begins Fairmont will begin to change, for
the better, I have been awaiting this moment for over a year ever since our former manager



Page 5 — Regular Mecting, February 21, 2023

told us what was happening regarding code revision. We've all waited paticntly. We're all
anxious to move forward. Fairmont’s physical and economic future is now on the line. We
cannot and must not drag our feet ot be tentative. Let’s approve the codes and watch as
Fairmont is transformed into the community we all want it to be. This is a defining moment
for our community. We¢ now will have the means to actually, physically make Fairmont a
better, cleancr, more up to date town. The only thing standing between that future status
and our present one is the adoption of these codes and I truly believe all of us want that. I
stand firmly with each board member as you study, discugs, and adopt these codes. We are
a team. A team that wants all the best for Fairmon t’s do that for her and all our
citizens,

Mayor Kemp announced that Chanda Hughes will be fhe 2023 ts Festival Chairman.

Town Manager Comments

Town Manager Jerome Chestnot said he is pro

o serve the Town of Fa
hard working staff. - 2

ont and thanked his

Announcements

Saturday, March 18 — Senior Bingo, 1
Center.

Tuesday, March 21
Center

Wednes

Jennifer H. Larson
Town Clerk



AMENDMENT #7 B P R
23-229

TOWN OF FAIRMONT
2022-2023 BUDGET ORDINANCE; e2y2n . Fesng l t I --—B

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Fairmont,.previously approved the Annual Budget
Ordinance 22-211; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to make amendments to the budget to reflect additional revenue and expenditures for
Fiscal Year 2022-2023,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Fairmont, North Carolina
that;

SECTION I. General Fund Revenue is horeby increased $3,945 from $2,353,730 lo $2,357,675 as shown as follows:

Interest $ 1,655
Sale of Fixed Assets $§ 2,260
TOTAL REVENUES $ 3,945

SECTION II. General Fund Expenditures are hereby increased $3,945 from $2,353,730 to $2,357,675 as shown as
follows:

Finance Professional Serviecs $ 3.945
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 3,945

SECTION III. Revenues and Expenditures of the Ordinance Amendmeoent have increased $3,943 from $4,008,211.00
to $ 4,012,155 as follows:

SUMMARY

GENERAL FUND $2,357,675.00
POWELL BILL FUNI} $111,117.00
WATER & SEWER FUND $1,497,471.00
FEDERAL DRUG FUND $3,350.00
STATE DRUG FUND $4,450.00
RBEG ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND $19,000.00
CEMETERY FUND $18,993.00

TOTAL $4,012,155.00

Adopted this 21st day of March 2023,

Charles Kemp, Mayor
Attest:

Jennifer H. Larson, Town Clerk



AR A HT”M:_]_I l - C——"

TR Saope

ORDINANCE 23-230

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE
MAY DAY FUN FESTIVAL AND PARADE

WHEREAS, the Fairmont Board of Commissioners acknowledges a tradition of providing an
annual May Day Fun Festival for the pleasure and enjoyment of its citizens and visitors; and,

WHEREAS, the Fairmont Board of Commissioners acknowledges this festival provides an
~ opportunity for day-long, family-oriented activities; and,

WHEREAS, the Fairmont Board of Commissioners acknowledges a parade and festival requires
approximately two (2) hours to install signing and traffic contrel, and also requires approximately
two (2) hours for removing signs, traffic control, and litter;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Fairmont Board of Commissioners pursuant to
the authority granted by G.S. 20-169 that they do hereby declare a temporary road closure during
the date and times set forth below on the following described portion of a State Highway System
route;

Date: Saturday, May 6, 2023
Times: 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
Route Description: The parade route is Main Street (NC 41) from NC 130

Bypass to Railroad Street. The parade lasts from 10:30 am.
to 12:00 p.m. The main part ot the festival is held on Main
Street, which will require Main Street (NC 41) to be closed
from Cottage Street (NC 130) to Railroad Street.

This ordinance to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the limits and times of
the parade, and implementation of adequate traffic control to guide through vehicles around the
parade route.

Adopted this the 21st day of March, 2023.

Charles Kemp, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jennifer H. Larson, NCCMC, Town Clerk



ORDINANCE 23-231

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE
SUMMER BUSINESS EXPO

WHEREAS, the Fairmont Board of Commissioners acknowledges the potential for holding a
Summer Business Expo; and,

WHEREAS, the Fairmont Board of Commissioners acknowledges this event provides an
opportunity for day-long, family-oriented activities; and,

WHEREAS, the Fairmont Board of Commissioners acknowledges a downtown event requires
approximately two (2) hours to install signing and traffic control, and also requires appr0x1mately
two (2) hours for removing signs, traffic control, and litter;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Fairmont Board of Commissioners pursuant to
the authority granted by G.S. 20-169 that they do hereby declare a temporary road closure during
the date and times set forth below on the following described portion of a State Highway System
route:

Date: Saturday, May 20, 2023
Times: 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
Route Description: The expo will be held on Main Street, which will require

Main Street (NC 41) to be closed from lona Street (NC 130)
to Railroad Street.

This ordinance to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the limits and times of
the event, and implementation of adequate traffic control to guide through vehicles around the
event,

Adopted this the 21st day of March, 2023,

Charles Kemp, Mayor
ATTEST;

Jennifer H. Larson, NCCMC, Town Clerk



WIHEREAS, the Town of Fairmont wishes to carry out its FY2022 CDBG Neighborhood
Revitalization Program in accordance with established state and federal administrative guidelines.

NOW THEREFORE, the Town of Fairmont Board of Commissioners hereby collectively adopts
the following Compliance Plans/Project Budget Ordinance and resolves that the attached
documents be executed and utilized during the administration of the FY20122 CDBG

TOWN OF FAIRMONT

RESOLUTION 23-03 APPROVING CDBG COMPLIANCE PLANS/PROJECT
BUDGET ORDINANCE 23-232 FOR FY2022 CDBG NEIGHBORHOOD

REVITALIZATION PROGRAM

Neighborhood Revitalization Program:

Equal Employment Opportunity and Procurement Plan

Fair Housing Plan '

Section 3 Plan

Section 504 Compliance Officer/Grievance Procedure
Language Access Plan

519 Resolution ~ Excessive Force Policy

Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan
Optional Coverage Plan

Program Policies

Code of Conduct

Performance Based Contract

Use of Experienced CDBG Administrator

Signatory Resolution

Signature Cards

Project Budget Ordinance 23-232 - CDBG 21-C-4013 - $950,000

Adopted this 21st day of March, 2023.

Charles Kemp, Mayor

Attest:

Jennifer H. Larson, Town Clerk

(SEAL)



Town of Fairmont

CDBG Programs
Equal Employment and Procurement Plan

The Town of Fairmont maintains the policy of providing equal cmployment opportunities for all
persons regardless of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, handicap, age, political affiliation,
or any other non-merit factor, except where religion, sex, national origin, or age arc bona fide
occupation gualifications for employment.

In furtherance of this policy, the Town prohibits any retaliatory action of any kind taken by any
employee of the locality against any other employee or applicant for employment because that
person made a charge, testified, assisted or participated in any manner in a hearing, proceeding
or investigation of employment discrimination.

The Town shall strive for greater utilization of all persons by identifying previously underutilized
groups in the workforce, such as minoritics, women, and the handicapped, and making special
ctforts toward their recruitment, sclection, development and upward mobility and any other term,
condition, or privilege of cployment.

Responsibility for implementing equal opportunities and affirmative action measures is hereby
assigned to the Mayor and/or other persons designated by the Chief Flected Official to assist in
the implementation of this policy statement.

The Town shall development a self-evaluation mechanism to provide for periodic examination
and evaluation. Periodic reports as requested on the progress of Equal Employment Opporttunity
and Affirmative Action will be presented to the Chief Elected Official.

The Town is committed to this policy and is aware that with its implementation, the Town will
receive positive benefits through the greater utilization and development of all its human
resources.

Adopted this 21% day of March, 2023.

Chatles Kemp, Mayor

ATTEST:

(Clerk)

XAGrants\CDBG-NR\Fm22 EEC and Procurement Plan.docx



Recipicnt’s Plan to Further Fair Housing

Grantee: Town of Fairmont

Recipient’s Address:
P.Q, Box 248, Fairmont, NC 28340

Contact Person: Jennifer Larson Contact Phone #: 910-628-9766
Contact Email:
jlarson@fairmontnc.gov TDD #:800-735-2962

L Indicate if the Recipient will be affirmatively furthering fair housing for the

1L

IL.

Iv.

first time or has implemented specific activities in the past.

First Time Past Activities X
Identify and analyze obstacles to affirmatively furthering fair housing
in recipient’s community, (Use additional pages as nccessary)

A major obstacle in Town is lack of knowledge, community awareness and
education. Some of the low income families are not aware of housing assistance
programs and other services available to them in the Town, Although local
Realtors, lending institutions and other agencies are involved in housing
placement and financing and are aware of Federal Fair Housing Legislation, there
appears to be a lack of specific knowledge getting to our citizens of the Title VII
of the Civil Rights Act of 1968.

Will the above activitics apply to the total municipality or county?

Yes X No If no, provide an explanation.
(Usc additional pages as necessary)

Briefly describe the quarterly activities that the recipient will undertake over
the active period of the grant to affirmatively further fair housing in their
community. A time schedule and estimated cost for implementation of these
activities must be included. Activities must be scheduled for implementation at
least on a quarterly basis. (Usc attached table)

XAGrantsWCDBG-NRVWFm22 Tair Housing Plan.docx



Grantee Name: Town of Fairmont

Quarterly Fair Housing Activity Months Year | Estimated | Actual
Cost Cost

Example: Establish FH policy, Complaint Procedure | Jan-Mar. | 20xx Sxxxx S
Publish Fair Housing Complaint Procedure with the Jan, — 2023 $75
TDD number, March
Place Fair Housing Literature in the Lobby of the April — | 2023 0
Town Hall June

July— | 2023 0
Distribute Fair Housing Brochures to Local Financial Sept.
Institutions, Realtors, Businesses
Publish Notice to Public Promoting Fair Housing. Oct. — 2023 $75

Dec.

Jan. — 2024 $20
Conduct a Fair Housing Awareness Mceting March

April — | 2024 $75
Publish Fair Housing Complaint Procedure with the Junc
TDD numbcr.
A Fair Housing Notice will be printed on Town Water | July— [ 2024 $20
Bill to all customers Sept.

Oct, —~ | 2024 $75
Publish Notice to Public Promoting Fair Housing Dec.
Distribute Fair Housing Brochures to Local Financial Jan. — 2025 0
Institutions, Realtors, Businesses March
A Fair Housing Notice will be printed on Town Water | April— | 2023 0
Bill to all customers June
Update Fair Housing Poster in Town Hall July— | 2025 $20

Sept

Oct. - | 2025 $75

Post Complaint Procedure in Lobby of Town Hall Dec,

XAGrants\CDBG-NRVWWm22 Fair Housing Plan.docx




1y

2)

3)

4

Describe recipient’s method of receiving and resolving housing
discrimination complaints. This may be either a procedure currently being
implemented or one to be implemented under this CDBG grant, Include a
description of how the recipient informs the public ahout the complaint
procedures. {Use additional pages as necessary)

Any person or persons wishing to file a complaint of housing discrimination in the
Town may do so by informing the Town Clerk of the facts and circumstance of the
alleged discriminatory acts or practice.

Upon receiving a housing discrimination complaint, the Town Clerk shall
acknowledge the complaint within 10 days in writing and inform the Division of
Community Assistance and the North Carolina Human Relations Commission
about the complaint,

The Town Clerk shall offer assistance to the Commission in the investigation and
reconciliation of all housing discrimination complaints which are based on cvents
occurring in the Town.

The Town Clerk shall publicize in the local newspaper, with the TDD#, who is the
local agency to contact with housing discrimination complaints,

Approved By:

Charles Kemp, Mayor 3/21/23

Name and Title of Signature Date
Chief Elected or Executive Officer

XAGrants\CDBG-NRYFm22 Fair Housing Plan.docx



Local Jobs Initiative
Section 3 Plan
Local Economic Benefit for Low- and Very Low-Income Persons

TOWN OF FAIRMONT

I, APPLICATION AND COVERAGE OF POLICY

NC Commerce and any of it sub-recipienty are committed to the policy that, to the greatest extent
possible, opportunities for training and employment be given to lower income residents of the
community development project arca and contracts for work in connection with federally assisted
community development project be awarded to business concerns located or owned in substantial
part by persons residing in the Section 3 covered area, as required by Scction 3 of the Housing and
Urban Development Act of 1968, NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients of the Town of
Fairmont has developed and hereby adopts the following Plan:

NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients will comply with all applicable provisions of Section 3
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (24 CRF Part 135), all regulations
issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, and all applicable rules
and orders of the Department issued thereunder

This Section 3 covered project area for the purposes of this grant program shall include NC
Commerce and any of its sub-recipienty and portions of the immcdiately adjacent area.

NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients will be responsible for implementation and
administration of the Section 3 plan. In order to implement the NC Commerce and any of its suh-
recipient’s policy of encouraging local residents and businesses participation in undertaking
community development activitics, the NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients wiil follow this
Section 3 plan which describes the steps to be taken to provide increased opportunities for local
residents and businesses

This Section 3 Plan shall apply to services needed in connection with the grant including, but not
limited to, businesscs in the ficlds of planning, consulting, design, building construction/renovation,
maintenance and repair, efc.

When in need of a service, NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients will identify suppliers,
contractors or subcontractors located in the Section 3 area. Resources for this identification shall
include the Minority Business Directory published through the State Department of Commerce, local
directories and Small Business Administration local offices. Word of mouth recommendation shall
also be used as a source.

The State of North Carolina and any of its sub-recipients will include the Section 3 clause and this
plan in all contracts executed under this Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.
Where necessary, listings from any agency noted above deemed shall be included as well as sources
of subcontractors and suppliets. The Section 3 Plan shall be mentioned in the pre- bid meetings and
preconstruction meetings.



The prime contractor selected for major public works facility or public construction work will be
required to submit a Section 3 Plan which will oufline his/her work needs in connection with the
praject. Should a nced exist to hire any additional personnel, the Sampson County Employment
Security Commission shall be notified and referred to the contractor.

Each contract for housing rehabilitation under the program, as applicable, for jobs having contracts in
excess of $100,000 shall be required to submit a Section 3 Plan. This Plan will be maintained on file
in the grant office and shall be updated from time to time or as the grant staff may deem necessary.

Early in our project, prior to any contracting, major purchases or hiring, we will develop a listing of
jobs, supplies and contracts likely to be utilized during the project. We will then advertise the
pertinent information regarding the project including all Scetion 3 required information. Community
Investment and Assistance (CI) should be contacted with the Bid Materials to distribute the
information throughout their list serve to reach out the communities.

IT. AFFIRMATIVE ACTIONS FOR RESIDENT AND BUSINESS PARTICIPATION

NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients will take the following steps to assure that low income
residents and businesses within the community development project area and within the Town are
used whenever possible: (Describe below)

The Town will keep a record of interested residents and businesses within the community
devclopment project arca and within the Town to use upon the need for solicitation of need for
scrvices. The Town will advertise the local distributed newspaper encouraging all low income
persons and Section 3 businesses to participate in activities related to the project,

(Example: Place qualified residents and businesses on solicitation lists, assure that residents and
businesses are solicited whenever they are potential sources of contracts, services or supplies; divide
total requirements, when cconomically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum
participation by residents and businesses; establish delivery schedule, where the requirements
permits, which encourages participation by area for residents and businesses)

Please check the methods to be used for the Scetion 3 program in your community:

NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients will place a display advertisement in the local
newspaper containing the following information:

i. A bricf description of the project

ii, A listing of jobs, contracts and supplies likely to be utilized in carrying out the project.

iii.  An acknowledgement that under Section 3 of Housing and Community Development Act,
local residents and businesses will be utilized for jobs, contract and supplies in carrying out
the project to the greatest extent feasible.

iv. A location where individuals interested in jobs or contracts can register for consideration

v. A statement that all jobs will be listed through and hiring will be done through the local
office of the North Carolina Employment Security Commission; a statement that all contracts
will be listed with the North Carolina Division of Purchase and Contracts; and a statement
that potential employees and businesses may scck development and training assistance
through various state and local agencies, or which the Tows will maintain a list for
individuals and business concerns inquiring information



[] Training and technical assistance will be provided by the local community college for low
income residents requiring skills to participate in community development project activities.
Referrals will be made to the community college, local Private Industry Councils, Job Training
Partnership Act (29 U.S.C. 1579 (a)) (JTPA) Programs, and job training programs provided by local
community action agencies as appropriate. Residents and businesses will be encouraged to
participate in state and/or federal job (raining programs that may be offered in the area.

Low income residents and businesses will be informed and educated regarding employment and
procurement opportunities in the following ways:

1. Advertisement in the local newspaper
ii.  Posting of Section 3 Plan at the Town Hall

[] Other (describe):

NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients will, to the greatest extent feasible, utilize lower income
area residents as trainees and cmployees:

1. Encourage rehabilitation contractors to hire local area residents
2. Encourage public works contractors to hire local area residents

NC Commerce and any of its sub-rvecipients will, to the greatest extent feasible, utilize businesses
located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area

1. Contract with local confractors to perform demolition activities, and housing rehabilitation
activilies.

2. Encourage public improvement contractors to hire local residents for site clearance work,
hauling materials, and performing other site improvements.

3. Encourage all contractors to purchase supplies and materials from the local hardware and
supply stores

ITI. RECORDS AND REPORTS

NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients will maintain such records and accounts and furnish
such information and reports as are required under the Section 3 regulations, and permit authorized
represcntatives of State CDBG, and federal agencies aceess fo books, records, and premises for
purposes of investigation in connection with a grievance or to ascertain compliance with this Section
3 Plan.

NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients shall report annually the Section 3 numbers using the
form HUD 60002 to State CDBG at the end of the calendar ycar as part of the Annual Performance
Report (APR).



IV. MONITORING COMPLIANCE

NC Commerce and any of its sub-recipients may require each applicable contractor to provide a
copy of the Section 3 Plan and will monitor compliance during the performance of the contract.
Copies of all advertisements, noticc, and published information will be kept to document the
implementation of the plan.

V. COMPLAINTS CONTACT

Please provide the main contact in case that any complaint is received from the general public on
Section 3 compliance (including name, phone number, address, and email):

Jennifer Larson

P.O. Box 248

Fairmont, NC 28340
910-628-9766
jlarson@fairmontnc.gov

Adopted this 21* day of March, 2023.

Charles Kemp, Mayor

ATTEST:




TOWN OF FAIRMONT
P.0O. BOX 248
FAIRMONT, NC 28340
SECTION 504
COMPLIANCE OFFICER/GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The Town of Fairmont Board of Comumissioners hereby designates the Mayor to
serve as Section 504 Compliance Officer throughout the implementation of the Fairmont
Community Development Block Grant Program.

Citizens with Section 504 grievances may file these with the Mayor at any point
in the program. The Town will respond in writing to written citizen grievances. Citizen
grievances should be mailed to Mayor, P.O. Box 248, Fairmont, NC 28340. The Town
will respond to all written citizen grievances within ten (10} calendar days of receipt of
the comments.

Should any individual, family, or entity have a grievance concerning any action
prohibited under Section 504, a mecting with the compliance officer to discuss the
grievance will be scheduled. The meeting date and time will be established within five
(5) days of receipt of the request. Upon mecting and discussing the grievance, a reply
will be made, in writing, within five (5) calendar days.

If the citizen is dissatisfied with the local response, they may write to the North
Carolina Department of Commerce, Division of Community Assistance, 4313 Mail
Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-4313. DOC will respond only to written comments
with ten (10) calendar days of the receipt of the comments,

Charles Kemp, Mayor

March 21, 2023
Date

XMAGrantsWCDBG-NR\WFm22 Section 304 Complaint Proc.doe



Town of Fairmont

Language Access Plan
(5-Year Plan)

Providing Meaningful Communication with Persons with Limited English Proficicncy

The purpose of this Policy and Plan is to ensurve compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, and other applicable federal and state laws and theiyr implementing regulations with
respect to persons with limited English proficiency (LEP). Title VI of the Civil Righits Act of 1964
prohibits discrimination based on the ground of race, color or national origin by any entity receiving
Jederal financial assistance. Administrative methods or procedures, which have the effect of subjecting
individuals to discrimination or defeating the objectives of these regulations, are prohibited.

POLICY:

In otder to avoid discrimination on the grounds of national origin, all programs or activities administered
by the Town of Fairmoent will take reasonable steps to ensure that persons with Limited English Proficiency
(I.EP)} have taeaningful access and an equal opportunity to participate in benefits and services for which
such persons qualify. This Policy defines the responsibilities the agency has to ensure LEP individuals can
communicate effectively,

DEFINITIONS:

Limited English Proficient (LEP) individual -- Any prospective, potential, or actual recipient of benefits
or services from the agency who cannot speak, read, write or understand the English language at a level
that permits them to interact effectively with health care providers and social service agencies,

Vital Documents — These forms include, but are not limited to, applications, consent forms, all compliance
plans, bid documents, fair housing information, citizen participation plans, letters containing important
information regarding participation in a prograim; notices pertaining to the reduction, denial, or termination
of services or benefits, the right to appeal such actions, or that require a response from beneficiary notices
advising LEP persons of the availability of free language assistance, and other outreach materials.

Title VI Compliance Officer: The person or persons responsible for administering compliance with the
Title VI LEP policies.

Substantial number of LEP. 5% or 1,000 people, whichever is smaller, are potential applicants or
recipients of the agency and speak a primary language other than linglish and have limited English
proficiency.



PROCEDURES:
1. IDENTIFYING LEP PERSONS AND THEIR LANGUAGE

The Town of Fairmont will promptly identify the language and communication needs of the LEP
person. Stafl will use a language identification card (or “I speak cards,” provided by the Rural Economic
Development Division (REDD) and LEP posters to determine the language. In addition, when records are
kept of past interactions with individuals or family members, the language used to communicate with the
LEP person will be included as patt of the record.

2. OBTAINING A QUALIFIED INTEPRETER

List the current name, office telephone number, office address and email address of the Title VI compliance
officers:

Jennifer Larson

P.O. Box 248

Fairmont, NC 28340

910-628-9766
jlarson@fairmontne.gove

Check all methods that will be used:

[ ] Maintaining an accurate and current list showing the language, phone number and hours of availability
of bilingual staff {previde the lisp):

[] Contacting the approptiate bilingual staff member to interpret, in the event that an interpreter is needed,
if an employee who speaks the needed language is available and is qualified to interpret;

Obtaining an outside interpreter if a bilingual staff or staff interpreter is not available or does not spcak
the needed language.

({dentdfy the agency(s) name(s) with whom you have contracted or made arrangements)

Robeson County Department of Social Services

(5101 671-3500

The agency’s hours of availability are from 8am - 5 pm.

[] Other (describe):

All staff will be provided notice of this policy and procedure, and staff that may have direct contact with
LEP individuals will be trained in cffective communication techniquey, including the effective use of an

interpreter.




Some LEP persons may prefer or request to use a family member or friend as an interpreter, However,
family members or friends of the LEP person will not be used as interpreters unless specifically requested
by that individual and after the LEP person has understood that an offer of an interpreter at no charge to
the person has been made by the facility, Such an offer and the response will be documented in the person’s
file, If the LEP person chooses to use a family member or friend as an interpreter, issues of competency of
interpretation, confidentiality, privacy, and conflict of interest should be considered. If the family member
or friend is not competent or appropriate for any of these reasons, competent interpreter services will be
provided to the LEP person.

Children and other residents will not be used to interpret, in order to ensure confidentiality of information
and accurate communication.

3. PROVIDING WRITTEN TRANSLATIONS

i.  The Town of Fairmont will set benchmarks for translation of vital documents into additional
languages. (please ensure to keep recovds of those decuments that apply to your agency)
fi.  When translation of vital documents is needed, the Town of Fairmont will submit documents for
translation into frequently-encountered languages.
iti.  Facilities will provide translation of other written materials, if needed, as well as written notice of
the availability of translation, free of charge, for LEP individuals,

4, PROVIDING NOTICE TO LEP PERSONS

The Town of Fairmont will inform LEP persons of the availability of language assistance, free of charge,
by providing written notice in languages I.EP persons will understand. Example: The notification will
include, in the primary language of the applicant/recipient, the following language: IMPORTANT: IF
YOU NEED HELP IN READING THIS, ASK THE AGENCY FOR AN INTERPRETER TO HELP, AN
INTERPRETER IS AVAILABLE FREE OI' CHARGE,

All interpreters, translators and other aids needed to comply with this policy shall be provided without cost
to the person being served, and individuals and their families will be informed of the availability of such
assistance free of charge.

At a minimum, notices and signs will be posted and provided in intake areas and other points of entry,
including but not limited to the main lobbies, waiting rooms, etc.

Main Lobby (Include those areas that apply to your agency).

Notification will also be provided through one or more of the following: outreach documents, telephonc
voice mail menus, local newspapers, radio and tclevision stations, and/or community-based organizations

Local Newspaper (Tnclude those that apply to your agency).
5. MONITORING LANGUAGE NEEDS AND IMPLEMENTATION

On an ongoing basis, The Town of Fairmont will assess changes in demographics, types of services or
other needs that may require reevaluation of this policy and its procedures. In addition, The Town of
Fairmont will regularly assess the efficacy of these procedures, including but not limited to mechanisms
for securing interpreter services, complaints filed by LEP persons, feedback from residents and community
organizations, efc,



I.  Compliance Procedures, Reporting and Monitoring
A. Reporting

The agency will compleie an annual compliance report and send this report to REDD. (Format will be
supplicd by REDD)

B. Monitoring
The agency will complete a self-monitoring report on a quarterly basis, using a standardized reporting
system proposed by the local government. These reports will be maintained and stored by the Title VI
Compliance Officer and will be provided to the REDD upon request.
The agency will cooperate, when requested, with special review by the REDD.

.  Applicant/Recipient Complaints of Discriminatory Treatment

A. Complaints
The agency will provide assistance to LEP individuals who do not speak or write in English if they
indicatc that they would like to file a complaint. A complaint will be filed in writing, contain the name

and address of the person filing it or his/her designee and bricfly describe the alleged violation of this
policy. The form can be found at https:/www.nccommerce.com/documents/cdbg-compliance-plans,

The agency will maintain records of any complaints filed, the date of filing, actions taken and resolution,

The agency will notify the appropriate section within REDD of complaints filed, the date of filing, actions
taken and resolution, This information will be provided within 30 days of resolution.

B. Resolution of Maiter

If the matter cannot be resolved by informal means, the individual will be informed of his or her right to
appeal further to REDD. This notice will be provided in the primary language of the individual with Limited
English Proficiency.

The REDD Compliance Office will conduct an investigation of the allegations of the complaint. The
investigation will afford all interested persons and their representatives, if any, an oppertunity to submit
evidence relevant to the complaint.

The investigation will not exceed 30 days, absent a 15-day extension for extenuating circumstances.

If the investigation indicates a failure to comply with the Act, the local unit of government, agency Director
or his/her designee will so inform the recipient and the matter will be resolved by informal means whenever
possible within 60 days.

If the matter cannot be resolved by informal means, then the individual will be informed of his or her right
to appeal further to the Department of Justice. This notice will be provided in the primary language of the
individual with Limited English Proficiency,

If not resolved by REDD, then complaint will be forwarded to Department of Justice (DOJ), Depariment
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) ['ield Office.



Charleg Kemp

Mayor

SUBMITTED AND ADOPTED BY:

Signaturc of Mayor

March 21, 2023

Date



THE PROHIBITION OF THE USE OF EXCESSIVE FORCE FOR CDBG
GRANTEES

WIHEREAS, the Town of Fairmont, as the recipient of federal funding through the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Grant program;

WHEREAS, Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act (HCDA) of 1974, Section 519 of
Public Law 101-144, and 1990 HUD Appropriations Act requires that all CDBG recipients adopt and
enforce a policy to prohibit the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within the recipient’s
Jjurisdiction against any individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations;

WHEREAS, all recipients of CDBG funds are further required to follow a policy enforcing applicable
federal, state and local laws against physically barring entrances or exists to a facility (hat is the subject of

anon-violen{ demonstration;

WHERIZAS, Town of Fairmont endorses a policy prohibiting the use of excessive force and will inform
all law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction of this policy; and

WHEREAS, the failure to enforce such policy may cause the Town of Fairmont to lose its grant or
eligibility for future federal grants;

NOW THUERUI'ORE, BE [T RESOLVED:

SECTION 1; It is the Policy of the Town of Fairment that excessive force by local law enforcement
agencies shall not be used against individuals cngaged in lawful and non-violent civil
rights demonstrations within the its boundaries.

SECTION 2 1t is the Policy of the Town of Fairmont to enforce applicable federal, state and local
laws against the physical barring of an entrance to or exit from a facility or location which
is the subject of noaviolent civil rights demonstrations within its jurisdiction.

SECTION 3: The Town Commissioners will coordinate with the local law enforcement agency(ies)
to implement this Resolution,

PASSED BY THE FAIRMONT COMMISSIONERS, FAIRMONT, NORTH CAROLINA,

Adopted this 21 day of March, 2023,

ATTEST:

Chazrles Kemp, Mayor

Jermifer Larson, Clerk



RESIDENTIAL ANTI-DISPLACEMENT
AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN

This Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan is prepared by the Town of Fairmont
in accordance with the ITousing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended; and HUD
regulations at 24 CFR 42.325 and is applicable to our CDBG! projects.

MINIMIZE DISPLACEMENT

Consistent with the goals and objectives of activities assisted under the Act, the Town will take the
following steps to minimize the direct and indirect displacement of persons from their homes:

(] Coordinate code enforcement with rehabilitation and housing assistance programs.

[1 Bvaluate housing codes and rehabilitation standards in reinvestment areas to prevent undue financial
burden on established owners and tenants.

L1 Arrange for facilities to house persons who must be relocated temporarily during rehabilitation,

CDBG programs include: Entitlement Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program, State
CDBG Program, CDBG Small Cities Program, Section 108 Loan Guarantee Program, CDBG Special
Purpose Grants Program, and the Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP).

O] If feasible, demolish or convert only dwelling units that are not occupied or vacant occupiable
dwelling units (especially those units which are “lower-income dwelling units” (as defined in 24
CFR 42.305).

[J Target only those properties deemed essential to the need or success of the project.

Ll Other: (Describe)

A. Relocation Assistance to Displaced Persons

The Town will provide relocation assistance for lower-income tenants who, in connection with an activity
assisted under the CDBG Program([s], move permanently or move personal propetty frotn real propetty as
a direct result of the demolition of any dwelling unit or the conversion of a lower-income dwelling unit in
accordance with the requircments of 24 CFR 42,350, A displaced person who is not a lower-income tenant,
will be provided relocation assistance in accordance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24,



B. One-for-One Replacement of Lower-Income Dwelling Units

The Town will replace all occupied and vacant occupiable lower-income dwelling units demolished or
converted to a use other than lower-income housing in connection with a project assisted with funds
provided under the CDBG Program[s] in accordance with 24 CT'R 42,375,

Before entering into a contract commiiting Town to provide funds for a project that will directly result in
demolifion or conversion of lower-income dwelling units, the Town will make public by publication in a
newspapet of general circulation and submit to State CDBG Program(s) North Carolina Department of
Commerce (NC DOC) the following information in writing:

1. A description of the proposed assisted project;

2. The address, numbcr of bedrooms, and location on a map of lower-income dwelling units that will
be demolished or converted to a use other than as lower- income dwelling units as a result of an
assisted project;

3. Atime schedule for the commencement and completion of the demolition or conversion;
4. To the extent known, the address, number of lower-income dwelling units by size (number of

bedrooms) and location on a map of the replacement lower-income housing that has been or will
be provided. [See also 24 CFR 42,375(d)].

5. The source of funding and a time schedule for the provision of the replacement dwelling units;

6. The basis for concluding that each replacement dwelling unit will remain a lower-income dwelling
unit for at least 10 years from the date of initial occupancy; and

7. Information demonstrating that any proposed replacement of lower-income dwelling units with
smaller dwelling units (e.g., a 2-bedroom unit with two 1-bedroom unifs), or any proposed
replacement of efficiency or single-room occupancy (SRO) units with units of a different size, is
appropriate and consistent with the housing needs and priorities identified in the HUD-approved
Consolidated Plan and 24 CFR 42.375(b).

To the extent that the specific location of the replacement dwelling units and other data in items 4 through
7 arc not available at the time of the general subinission, the Town will identify the general location of such
dwelling units on a map and complete the disclosure and submission requirements as soon as the specific
data is available.

C. Replacement not Required Based on Unit Availability

Under 24 CFR 42.375(d), the Town may submit a request to the State (NC DOC) for a determination that
the one-for-one replacement requirement does not apply based on objective data that there is an adequate
supply of vacant lower-income dwelling units in standard condition available on a non-discriminatory basis
within the area.



D. Contacts

The Town Clerk at 910-628-9766 is responsible for tracking the replacement of lower income dwelling
units and ensuring that they are provided within the required period.

The Town Clerk at 910-628-9766 is responsible for providing relocation payments and other relocation
assistance to any lower-income person displaced by the demolition of any dwclling unit or the conversion
of lower-income dwelling units to another use,

Adopted this 21% day of March, 2023.

Charles Kemp, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jennifer Larson, Town Clerk



TOWN OF FAIRMONT

OPTIONAL COVERAGE RELOCATION PLAN
CDBG PROGRAMS

Organization and Administration

The Town of Fairmont (hereinafter called “Town”) will administer and coordinate all relocation
activities (tcmporary or permanent) resulting from Community Development activitics. Citizens
displaced by Community Development Program activities are eligible to recceive relocation
assistance. Thce financial assistance is in a form as permitted under implementing regulations at
49 CFR part 24 and the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies
act of 1970, as amended.

Definition of a “Displaced Person”

A displaced individual is someone whose home, which is located within the Community
Development Activity Area, is determined to be in a condition too dilapidated to be
economically feasible to rehabilitate and will be demolished. This can also include a person
temporarily displaced as a result of program activitics such as housing rehabilitation or
reconstruction.

Definition of “Standard Housing”

A dwelling uvnit is in standard condition if it is decent, safe, and sanitary. A dweclling unit is
considered decent, safe, and sanitary if (a) it is in good repair and is weathertight, with no
leakage nor dampncss; (b) it has no health, fire nor safety hazards within the structure or in the
immediate vicinity; (c) it has running water, a private sewer-connected to a flush toilet, and a
bathroom for exclusive use of the occupant, with tub or shower with hot and cold running water,
all within the dwelling unit; (d) it has permanent, reasonably efficient kitchen facilities for
exclusive use of the occupant, including sink with hot and cold running water, cooking stove
connections, shelves and storage space for food and utensils; (e) it has facilities or connections
for washing and drying clothes; (f) it is large ¢nough to accommodate the occupants without
overcrowding; (g} it is equipped with adequate heating facilities; (h) it is adequately ventilated
by at least one operable window in every room and is screened, or screens are available; (i) it is
wired for electricity; and (j) it is located in a neighborhood which is free from industrial and
other nuisances, is supplied with the community facilitics of a standard neighborhood, and is
reasonably accessible to transportation, school, chutches and stores.

It is intended that all dwellings into which displaced families relocate will be inspected by the
Town, If the dwellings are not found to be decent, safe and sanitary, the move will be
considered temporary relocation.

RAGranes\ COBG-NRFM22 275 Opl Coverage Reloe Plan.dog
OPTIONAL COVERAGE I'LAN



Optional Coverage for the Town of Fairmont, North Carelina

The Town’s Community Development Program shall undertake relocation that may not be
covered automatically under the URA such as would be the case with voluntary demolition. The
Town intends for these persons to be served at the same levels as those described under the URA
and will use this Optional Coverage Relocation Plan to establish this coverage. Under this Plan,
the Town of Fairmont shall provide relocation payments and assistance to the following:

l.  Homeowners and their families who are displaced by rchabilitation activity of a
dwelling located within the Community Development Atca by the Town. This will
be effective only when the Town makes the request for the occupant to move.

2. Homeowners and their families who are displaced by the voluntary demolition of a
dwelling occupied by the families and located within the Community Development
Area.

Relocation Assistance to Families and Individuals

The Town shall provide rclocation planning, advisory and coordination services consistent with
those described in Section 24.205 of the URA. These shall include, but not be limited to, the
provision of transportation as deemed necessary and reasonable to support the relocation,
agsistance in submitting claims for payment, counscling and education on relocation regulations
and coordinating these activities with existing social service and economic assistance programs
as they are available,

Temporary Relocation

Rehabilitation shall be conducted without relocation of the affected occupants to the greatest
extent feasible. Should relocation be necessary and should available temporaty housing be
substandard by the above definition, the minimum standards set forth shall not apply. Such
relocation shall be accomplished at the minimum feasible cost. The Town will only pay for the
cost of the lodging during the temporary relocation time period. A maximum allowsable per night
charge shall be established prior to the move. Relocatees are required to submit receipts to the
Town documenting the expenses for which they are requesting reimbursement.

Moving Expensc Payment

A permanently displaced individual or family covered under this Plan shall be eligible to receive
a moving expense payment in accordance with the following sections of the Uniform Relocation
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (URA). Specifically
referenced is the following section of the URA:

L. Section 24.302 — Fixed payment for moving expenses — residential moves.
The rclocatee will receive payment on the basis of the moving expense schedule (Fixed Rate

Method) which is prepared by the U.S. Department of Transportation and shown below for the
State of North Carolina.

XAGrants CDBG-KRAFm22 278 Opt Coverage Raloc Plan.doe
OPTIONAL COVERAGE PLAN



Occupant Owns Furniture Occupant Does

Not Own

Number of Rooms of Furniture Furniture
Each Each
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Add. | First | Add.

Room | Room | Room

550 750 1050 | 1200 | 1350 | 1600 | 1700 | 1900 150 350 50

Under the Fixed Rate method, it should be noted that certain rooms are excluded from the
calculations. These include unfurnished or unused rooms, halls, bathrooms, attics, porches,
garages, dressing rooms and utility rooms, However, should the relocatee have sufficient storage
room in the above stated rooms, the Town may count one additional room for the sum of these,
but this is not to exceed one additional room for the calculation of the number of cligible rooms
in the dwelling.

Replacement Housing Payment

A permanently displaced individual or family covered under this Plan shall be eligible to receive
replacement housing payments in accordance with the following sections of the Uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act of 1970, as amended (URA).
Specifically referenced are the following sections of the URA:

L. Section 24,401 — 180 Day Homeowners
2. Section 24.403 — Additional Rules
3. Section 24.404 — Replacement Housing of Last Resort

Complaint Procedure

The Town conforms to standard, ethical practices in the relocation of individuals and families
and desires to see that all interests are protected. If there are any questions or complaints, the
Town solicits the coopcration of all owners and requests an opportunity to discuss them in an
cffort to satisfy all partics concerned. The Town has adopted the following Complaint
Procedurc:

Should any individual, family or entity have a complaint concerning the Town of Fairmont
Community Devclopment Program, the complaint should first be discussed with the Project
Manager. ALL EFFORTS SHOULD BE EXHAUSTED TO RESOLVE THE
COMPLAINT AT THIS LEVEL.

XaGrant COBG-NRFm22 275 Gpt Coverage Relog PMan.dec
CPTIONAL COVERAGE PLAY




If the complaint cannot be resolved in this manner, a mecting with the Mayor, to discuss the
complaint should be requested. The request should be in writing and should briefly outline the
complaint. A meeting date and time will be established within ten (10) calendar days of receipt
of the request. Upon meeting and discussing the complaint, a reply will be made, in writing,
within ten (10) calendar days.

If the citizen is dissatisfied with local response, they may write to the North Carolina
Department of Commerce, Division of Community Assistance (DCA), 4313 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-4313, DCA will respond enly to written comments
within ten (10} calendar days of the receipt of the comments,

Charles Kemp, Mayor

March 21, 2023
DATE

NAGra s CDDG-NRTm22 278 Opt Coveruge Reloe Plan.doc
QUTIONAL COVERAGE PLAN



PROGRAM POLICIES

CDBG PROGRAMS

TOWN OF FAIRMONT

March 21, 2023

ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF FAIRMONT:

Charles Kemp, Mayor

March 21, 2023

Date

XOrantstCDBG-NR\Fin22 Fragram Policics.dacx

PROGRAM POLICIES



PROGRAM POLICIES

The policies contained in this document will serve as administrative guidelines for any
Fairmont Community Development Block Grant Program. In the case of unforeseen
hardship or inconvenience, these standards may be varied with the written permission of
the Mayor. However, any variations made will not result in actions contrary to the Fairmont
CDBG Application and DOC Regulations.

L PROJECT AREA COMMITTEE

The CD Project Area Committee (PAC) will be composcd of three members (1
commissioner, the Town Clerk and the Mayor). The commissioner member will be
appointed by the Mayor, and any vacancy shall be immediately filled by the appointment
of the Mayor. The PAC shall hold quarterly meetings when necessary and make diligent
efforts to provide a liaison between the area citizens and the program administration.
Responsibilities of the PAC will include:

A. Review and comment on the program guidelines,

B. Provide coordination and contact between the project area residents and the

administrative personnel.

C. Conduct meetings to review the progress of the program.

D. Recommend program revisions to the administrative personnel as the project
develops.
Review recommended action to be taken on grievances.
Conduct a public hearing prior to the closc-out of the programs to obtain
comment on the success of the project.
G. Review and make recommendations on all community development

programs and/or budget amendments,

T

11 HOUSING REHABILITATION

Al General

L. All homeowners and landlords are responsible for the correction of housing
code violations of their housing facilities in the CDBG Target Arca. The
Program Administrator in conjunction with the local Code Enforcement
Officer (as needed) will inspect each dwelling unit to determine what must
be done to bring affected structures up to a minimum standard. QOwners will
be notified of all deficiencies, '

2. Financial and counseling assistance will be provided by the CDBG program
through grants and loans to homeownetrs and fandlords for the correction of
housing code deficiencies. Receipt of CDBG financial assistance will not
be mandatory. The homeowner or landlord may correct all housing
deficiencies through means other than the CDBG Program.

XGrants'CDBG-NRE Fm22 Program Palicics.docx
2

PROGRAM POLICIES



B.

CDBG rehabilitation assistance will be provided for the cotrection of
housing code deficiencies only.

Homeowners and landlords may, at their discretion, receive CDBG
rehabilitation assistance for materials only and provide labor through other
sources,

The Town will act as the property owner's agent with respect to CDBG
housing rehabilitation activities. Upon completion of rehabilitation
activities, the property owncr will be notified that code violations in the
structure have been corrected.

Program Application Budget Amounts and Limits

1.

Per unit amounts budgeted within the CDBG Application for various sets
of proposed activities are as follows:

a. Frame Built Reconstruction § 136,000.00
b. Demo for Reconstruction $ 20.000.00
b. Frame Built Rehabilitation § N/A
c. Mobile Homes $ N/A

The maximum allowablc financial participation amount is the lesser of
$70.00 per square foot or $72,000.00 per unit for Rehabilitation. The Town
anticipates rehabilitation costs between major and minor units will average
out to the respective amounts budgeted. The Town rccognizes that some
additional deficiencies may exist or be uncovered during the rehabilitation
work. In order to correct these deficiencies, the bid amount may be
amended by up to 15% by the Program Administrator, This limit is not
applicable to Reconstructions,

Any expenditure over the bid amount plus 15% may be initially authorized
by the Mayor for two reasons; One, to remove imminent threats to health
and safety, and two, if the market value of the unit after rehabilitation work
is completed will be more than the contract amount,

Any unit with a proposed rehabilitation cost exceeding the maximum
allowable amount will be reviewed by the Mayor and C.D. Administrator.
These units will be either referred for demolition or held until the end of
housing activities to see if sufficient funds are available fot rchabilitation.
If sufficient funds are available, the Mayor and C.D. Administrator will
review whether to proceed with a request for substantial reconstruction or
relocation.

XaGrant CDBG-N W22 Program Policies, docx

PROGRAM POLICIES



C.

Rehabilitation Priorities and Contract Procedures

L.

In general, the priority for selecting housing for assistance shall follow the
following priorities:

LMI Owner occupied grant/loan financing

LMI Tenant occupied grant/loan financing — N/A

Above LMI Owner occupied loan financing — N/A

Above LIM Tenant occupied loan financing — N/A

. Vacant units — N/A

Within cach of the above categories, the elderly, handicapped or most
underprivileged shall receive priority. However, the C.D. Administrator
may deviate from these prioritics if it is in the best interest of the Program.

o ap o

All procurement and contract procedures will be completed in accordance
with 2 CFR 200. An advertisement for bids will be sent to rehabilitation
contractors and write-ups made available. Sealed bids will be reccived and
read aloud. The C.D. Administrator will review the bids and recommend
award. The Mayor may award the bids and execute grant and loan contracts
or applicable Deeds of Trust. Upon approval of the Mayor, the C.D.
Administrator will issue the Notice to Proceed. The C.ID. Administrator
may approve and execute all contract change orders as necessary within the
limits set forth in Section 1. B.2. Above.

The Town of Fairmont will have no responsibility for the execution of
private agreements nor will it allow any such agreements to hinder or
interfere with contracted rehabilitation activities.

Coordination with Property Owners

At a minimum, the following items will be reviewed with property owners cxcept
in the case of unforeseen circumstances:

All housing code deficiencies.

The proposed financing arrangement, grant or loan,

Decisions on rehabilitation, delay or demolition of the unit.
Procedures concerning bidding, contracts and construction,

Contract completion and closeout.

If the property owner disagrees with any of the information and
decisions presented, appeal of the decision can be processed through
the complaint procedure.

p\m.hmm'—‘

KAGrants'CDBG-NRVFin22 Program Policies.dnex

FROGRAM POLICIES



H.

Income Requirements

Income guidelines for determining grant and loan financing are those provided by
HUD as meeting low-moderate income limits. These figures are revised yeatly,
and the most current figures will apply. Income will be based on total household
income of all people over 18 years of age. The cighteen-year-old exclusion does
not apply for determining beneficiaries.

Grant/Loan Program

The type of assistance which will be made available for the correction of code
deficiencies depends on the factors listed below:

Owner Occupied or Rental
Household Income - Owner
Household Income - Tenant
Household Income - Landlord
Amount of Monthly Rent

SR e

The specific design of the Loan Program can be found as an attachment at the end
of these policies. See ATTACHMENT L

G. Rent Freeze and Recapture Provisions

Whenever CDBG funds are used fo tehabilitate a structurc, rent freeze and
recapture provisions shall apply. These provisions can also be found as an
attachment at the end of these policies. See ATTACHMENT L All recapture
provisions shall be secured by a promissory note and deed of trust held on the
property. Therefore, each property must have a clear title sufficient for execution
of the deed of trust. It shall be the responsibility of the owner to insure the clear
title.

Housing Code

1. All rehabable houses in the CDBG area must be brought up to minimum
housing code during this program. Reproduced and found at the end of
these policies is the N.C, Small Cities CDBG Housing Rehabilitation
Standards which is the minimum accepted by N.C. DOC,

2. When conducting the rehabilitation investigation and construction, the
following priorities will apply:

a.  Provisions of a safe, sanitary water supply and adequatc sewage
disposal to include provisions of indoor plumbing and hot water
service.

b.  Elimination of major structural defects which are creating hazardous
conditions due to unsafe electrical systems, etc.

KAGrantCOBG-NI 22 Pragram Poligies.dogx

FPROGRAM ZOLICIES



Weathcrization of the unit.

Control of insects, rodents and infestations.
Elimination of minor structural defects.
Landscaping to eliminate health hazards.

o oo

Substantial Rehabilitation

For the purposes of the CDBG program, substantial rehabilitation is defined as the
lesser of the two following standards: total CDBG rehabilitation costs for the unit
exceed $72,000.00; or total CDBG rchabilitation costs exceed $70 per square foot
of heated, occupiable space. DOC approval must be obtained where substantial
reconstruction is proposed as part of a neighborhood rehabilitation effort, In order
to receive DOC approval, justification for substantial rehabilitation must be based
on the following two circumstances;: _

{1}  The estimated cost of reconstruction is at least 20 percent less than
the estimated cost of purchasing comparable newly constructed
housing (including land) in the locality's jurisdiction; and

{2)  The estimated cost of the reconstruction (excluding demolition, site
preparation and temporary relocation) is less than the fair market
value of the reconstructed housing and land.

M. FORMS AND AGREEMENTS

In applying the previously discussed rehabilitation activities, incomes must be
verified, construction work let, agreements executed and construction completed,
Provided in the Master Rehab Casefile are the forms to be used for these activities,
The Future Deed of Trust forms and Loan Agreements are not included because
these forms will be approved by the Program Attorney prior to use.

IV,  ACQUISITION

A.

Acquisition of land is necessary in the following situations under the CDBG

program:

1. Acquisition of lots to remove dilapidated structures: Code Enforcement.

2. Acquisition of Right-of-Way necessary for parks, strects, drainage or other
public facilities improvements: Eminent Domain.

3. Acquisition of a permanent easement for items in No. IV.A.2.

General guidelines which will apply to code enforcement acquisition (structures)

are listed below. These puidelines may be varied by the Board of Commissioners

of Fairmont due to the broad nature of acquisition activitics.

1. A structure must be acquired and demolished when it is dctermined to be
economically "beyond repair”.

2. A structure must be acquired and demolished if it is an imminent threat to
health and safety.

HAOrenONRG-NRAFmn22 Program Policies.does

FROCRAM POLLICIES



A structure must be acquired and demolished if the proposed rehabilitation
cost is clearly more than the after rehabilitation market value. To salvage an
cxisting structurc, property owners may contribute directly to the
rehabilitation cost in order for the structure to be eligible for rehabilitation
assistance.

C. When it has been determined by the Program Administration that a structure must
be acquired and demolished, one of the following two methods may be used:

1.

The property owner may execute a voluntary demolition agreement and
temporary demolition casement. With this agreement, the CDBG Program
will demolish the structure, clear all debris, and reseed the lot. The property
owner will retain ownetship of the lot.

2. If the property owner does not wish to execute a voluntary demolition
agreement, the acquisition procedure listed in IV.D. below will be followed
to purchase the structure and the parccl of land. The CDBG Program will
demolish the structure and resell the property in accordance with municipal
disposition procedures,

3. When acquired property is offered for sale, it must be advertised and offered
for sale to low-and-moderate income individuals and construction of a
residential unit must start within 12 months, [f there is no interest from LMI
persons, the property must be re-advertised with only the 12-month restriction
remaining,

D. The steps necessary for acquisition of any property in the CDBG Program are as
follows:

1. Title certification.

2. Land survey.

3. Appraisal of the propetty if expected value is over $2,500.00 - property owner
must be invited to accompany the appraisct.

4. Second Appraisal of the property if it is a complex appraisal - property owners
must be invited to accompany the appraiser.

5. Appraisal Review by the Mayor, C.D. Administrator and Board of
Commissioners. _

6.  Establishment of Just Compensation by the Board of Commissioners.

7. Written offer to purchase to the property owner.

8.  Negotiation with the property owner.

9. Upon agreement, the property is purchased.

10. If agreement cannot be reached, the matter is referred to the attorney for

condemnation through code enforcement,

V. RELOCATION

Whenever a dilapidated structure is occupied, these people must be relocated to "standard
housing” which is safe, sanitary, and decent. Relocation shall be in accordance with the
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (PL

XNt CDRG-NEFn22 Program Polivies.doex

PROGHAM POLICTES



91-646). During the program execution, the Board of Commissioners of Fairmont may
adopt an "Optional Coverage Relocation Plan" if circumstances deem treatment through
other than Uniform Act procedures will be appropriate. All efforts will be made during the
2020 CDBG program to minimize displacement,

VI,  COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

Whenever conflict ariscs during the program, target area residents will have the following
procedure for dealing with complaints. All complaints must be made in writing and will
be responded to within 10 working days from the date of receipt.

A.

Submit complaint to the Program Administrator at the Town Hall, and the Program
Administrator will issue a written response to the complaint.

It resolution is not obtained, the complaint will be forwarded to the Town Clerk by
the complainant. A meeting with the complainant, Program Administrator and
Town Clerk will be held, and the Town Cletk shall issue a written response to the
complainant.

[f resolution is not obtained, the PAC shall conduct a hearing with the complainant,
Program Administrator and the Town Clerk to hear all sides of the complaint. The
PAC shall issue a written opinion to the complainant and to the Town Council of
Fairmont.

If resolution is still not obtained through the PAC, the Town Council of Fairmont
shall review the complainant's statement, previous written statements by the
Program Administrator and the Town Clerk, and the written opinion of the PAC.
The Town Council shall make a decision which will be final.

The Town Council's decision will be given to the complainant along with the name
and address of DOC and project representative for the 2021 CDBG program.

VI, CODE OF CONDUCT

A,

This Code shall govern the performance of officers, employees, and agents engaged
in the award and administration of contracts supported by Federat funds.

No employee, officer or agent of the Town shall participate in sclection, or in the
award or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a conflict of
interest, real or apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict would arisc when:
The employee, officer or agent;

Any member of his immediate family;

His or her pattoer; or

Any organization which employs or is about to employ any of the
above, has a financial or other interest in the firm selected for award.

I L PO =

K(rants\CDBG-NR\Fm22 Program Policics.dacx

PROGRAYM POLZCILS

8



C. Town officcrs, cmployees or agents shall ncither solicit nor accept gratuitics, favors
or anything of monctary valuc from contractors, potential contractors or parties to
sub-agrecments.

D. The Town, at its discretion may make determinations of minimum rules where
financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal
intrinsic value.

E. All violations of these standards deemed by the Town Council to be in excess of
minimum levels determined in Item VII. D., will result in penalties, sanctions or
disciplinary action as required by State and Local laws and regulations or as deemed
appropriate by the Town Council.

VIII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

A, Citizen participation shall be consistent with all requirements of the CDBG
Regulations. All said regulations shall be strictly adhered to. This citizen
participation plan shall include the following actions by the CDBG recipient:

1.  Solicit and respond to citizen views and proposals. Respond to written
comments within 10 calendar days.

2. Provide tcchnical assistance to groups so requesting to facilitate
participation and proposals.

3. Provide notices of public hearings in a timely manner. Notice to be
given 10-25 days betore public hearings.

4,  Schedule public hearings to permit broad citizen participation.

5. Hold the following public hearings at a minimum:
a.  Prior to formulation of CDBG Application
b.  After Application formulation but prior to submission
¢.  Prior to submission of every program amendment
d.  Prior to submission of closeout documents

6.  Provide for needs of non-English speaking citizens where a significant

number of non-English speaking participants are anticipated.

Any other requirements of T15:13L.1002 shall be herein incorporated by reference.

IX. PROCUREMENT POLICY

A, All procurement shall be conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200.

XAGrants\COBG-NRWFm 22 Program Policies.doex

PRCGRMM POLICIES



CODE OF CONDUCT

CDBG-PROGRAMS
TOWN OF FAIRMONT

A. This Code shall govern the performance of officers, employees, and agents engaged
in the award and administration of contracts supported by Federal funds,

B. No cmployec, officer or agent of Town shall participate in selection, or in the award
or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a conflict of interest,
real or apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when:

1. The employee, officer or agent;

2. Any member of his immediate family,

3. His or her partner; or

4,  Any organization which employs or is about to cmploy any of the
above, has a financial or other interest in the firm selected for award.

C. Town officers, employees or agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors
or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors or partics to
sub-agreements.

D. Town at its discretion may make determinations of minimum rules where financial
interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value,

E. All violations of these standards decmed by the Council to be in excess of minimum
levels determined in No. 4, will result in penalties, sanctions or disciplinary action
as required by State and Local laws and regulations or as decmed appropriate by
the Town Board of Commissioners,

Adopted this 21% day of March, 2023,

Charles Kemp, Mayor
Name, Title

XAGrants\CDBG-NRFM22 Code of Conduel.docx



00T SUGIHPUG) 210y ‘2
25001 soueqdusosy ukly pooLy B
200 nonyueT) IDGRAREIT,] TERY 2
00T Se0T GOQUPUET) |TIIUOIATY
Y001 Teapdohy STpUm I AunmaaX Ry Juels e
SINADYY AAEDSIEPY T
noRdLs» T nenydirasaqq wopduasaq wonduasag uoadriasag wondisag uondirasa(q won dadsNg wondirasagy nondoasag
payydmory paardmoe) papdwo;y pajardmo) papydmoyy poardwoy poardme) pmadwe)y paadmo) poapduoy
FEADOLY SS9, S5AD00] ¥, SSAIICLY %, SEA0LT S, SEXINAT 5, SE3004 9, b SETINLT %, 583004 4,
JALEIY MOT 30N Y JAHEND ] IIED) 1L JALIER() 19 A91endy |e JIENG iy AR M| 29dEnd pog TALIERQ) IS
E10F-D-1T O JUEXT) JUDELZIEA JO UMD ], AATRIL) JO OB N]

MPpaRS TONBINIdW] )ORING)) PISEH FDUBULIOLID ]



Sy sapELOI CE

pandndogy s 8

PRINNSTOT SO

(ST "EHRY H)cls R tm0ufey sy
2rE-T0.ATe SapU )
s ap pILLe

001 Lake 258 (AT 0% ol AT Fali APRAT] 1 SONENIRE 9
AT P
monTsodsyy 2
opismhay °q
ULNEIGY E
SHIAOY SUISROH T
SIE[} Y g % SEY % SHR) 9y oM % Eal iy e A % SHU) % L] %, s %
J3)Tendy [T JALEENY PG TR IR AIEN) YEL Jaeng) Qg JALAEN) RS RETR TR YTiT) ANTERQ PIE I2)3eng) pug ANIENC IST
“Seriperny 10 pRecrdde monEdde SO U] SUL0s SWOOU] SETPOJA PIEMGT DT DTE 12y S0t uo 250 op praedsRuns PNoTYs SR IR 2k poySydueoe 24 o 4EoF 15
TE= Y CUIpuny puk audue
E10FOIT "ON JUELD WAL 30 uang, IVJURIL) JO IWEN

SMPIYIS WO UdUAEdUE} IORIIT0]) PASES] MURULIOLIY]



palaTdmey R30an

suamasoxdmy o g

(B TR NI
TOE[[EIIORT B
SuprRay PRAUG]
559002 BApPIE
BEpRemIy

spe3npA0ydm) ASrumIq L

TR EETY
UORFESL UG e
TP IRy JPEUAD)
SSNIE FIRPIS
Bugassuiug
SHrIA0IdNI] J3ang g

pRgRr0) o,
TOTRMLSEOTY Yy
SupIEwy JIRNE0

ssaa0ay Suppry
SEpsamIuy
srmasnadw] famag g

PRI O Y0 A,

i o e b e

BUpatsy PELTNY

R5330,] SUTpPTg

SormanGuy
symmaacrdw aep F

wonduasag uondLrasag uondriasag uondLsag vonduas(g aondipsag uOn e uopdLiasa woppduniag uandusaq
paaqdmoyy paduo’y powpdmos par o0’y payapduoyy paadusioy pRdmo) PR’y pusdme]y paprduie)
SEN0IJ %, S50 %, SSI0L] %, S804 1, SSIDOLJ %, EEERTRY o7 SEIIDLT o SEAIET L, SSID0LJ v SSACLY %
NG )L 118 PG TN Wi ABPIEND YL AN 43I AALIBN) TR BLRr) W A9TENG PIE LRy Pug AILETY 15T
“Futpury 1y panrdee nonesedd ST T STUGE JMOSW) HBOP P M0 JOPET PUE 19300 0T T0 050 ©f puodsa1os plioys smupgery " SLg) e TN CTIO0E 3 OF 8|80 38
EI0D-1T Y] JUEIS) JROTILITE § J0 0D ), ANWETN) FO IR

(] F3ENUGTy pAsty PUBUEIGLIA




E)L7 ¢

aeq

E£T0T 1T YOTEI

LL
—

TOISTAL ¥ ETEN ] YA ey AD19AAI(]

SUEN MIITEA AWE Y]

BIMB0) (TR P70V 30 3IIBUSIS ¢

IRIL

FICI T

Aoy

ELT )

dady wpe

BOUIQ [6307] PRrLi0qiny 30 anjeusig g



TOWN OF FAIRMONT

421 South Main Street » PO. Box 248
Fairmont, NC 28340
Phone: (910) 628-9766 Email: fairmontnc@bellsouth.net Fax: {910) 628-6025
www.fairmontnc.com '

March 21, 2023

Mrs. Valerie Moore Fegans
NC Department of Commerce
4346 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-4346

Subject: Experienced Administrator
2022 Fairmont CDBG-NR
Grant No, 21-C-4013

Dear Mrs, l'egans:

As part of our conditions for release of funds, our Funding Approval requires that we
certify the usc of an Experienced CDBG Administrator. Please accept this letter as the Town'’s
certification for the following: -

Use of Bxperienced CDBG Administrator: the Town certifies they will be hiring an
experienced CDBG administrator, The firm hired will have administered more than
one CDBG project.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 910-649-7426.

Sincerely,

Charles Kemp
Mayor

BI/d

KArants\CDBA-NRIFm22 Experienced Administrator Cort..doc



SIGNATORY RESOLUTION
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF THE
TOWN OF FAIRMONT

WHEREAS, Fairmont has received a Grant no. 21-C-4013 under the NC Dcpartment of
Commerce/REDD Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program; and,

WHEREAS, Fairmont wishes to authorize ccttain individuals to sign the Requisition for Funds
forms; and,

WHEREAS, Faitmont is required to adopt a Resolution when the Mayor is one of the authorized
persons;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Fairmont that the
Town hereby authorizes the following individuals to sign Requisition for CDBG Funds
forms:

Jerome Chestnut, Town Manager

Jennifer Larson, Finance Officer/Town Clerk
Charles Kemp, Mayor

Jeffrey McCrece, Mayor Pro Tem

Adopted this the 21* day of March, 2023 at Fairmont, Notth Carolina.

By:_ Charles Kemp

Title; Mavor

KAGrants\CDBG-NEA'22 Signatory Resolution.doc



SIGNATORY FORM AND GERTIFICATION

Grant No. __21-C-4013

Recipient Name: __Town of Fairmont

Address: PO Box 248
Fairmont, NC 28340

Signatures of individuals authorized to sign Requisition for Funds forms. {Two signatures required on each requisition.}

Jerome Chestnut, Town Manager
(Signature) (Typed Name) (Typed Title)

Jennifer Larson, Finance Officer/Town Clerk
{Signature) (Typed Name) {Typed Title)

Charles Kemp, Mayor
(Signature) {Typed Name)} (Typed Title)

Jeffrey McCree, Mayor Pro Tem
(Signature) {Typed Name) (Typed Title)

CERTIFICATION

1. ( ) | certify that the sighatures above are of the individuals authorized to sign Requisition for Funds form for the
above recipient.

Certifying Official + Title

2. (X) The governing board has passed a resolution authorizing the persons above to sign Requisition for Funds
form for the ahove recipient. A copy of the resclution is attached.

i certify that the signatures above are those of the individuals authorized by resolution of the governing board
of the recipient te sign Requisition for Funds forms.

Certifying Official + Title

X \Grants\CDBG-NR\Fn22 SIGNATORY FORM AND CERTIFICATION.doc



GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE 23-232
2022 CDBG-NR PROGRAM
TOWN OF FAIRMONT

Be it ordained by the Fairmont Town Couneil that, pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Siatutes of
North Carolina, the following grant project ordinance is hereby adopted:

Section 1. 'The project authorized is the Community Development project deseribed in the worlk statemnent contained in
the grant agreement #21-C-4013 between this unit and the Department of Commerce. This project is more familiarly

known as the Fairmont 2022 Community Development Block Grant Project Neighborhood Revitalization.

Section 2, The officers of this unit are hereby directed to procesd with the grant project within the terms of the grant
documents, the rules and regulations of the Department of Commerce and the budget contained herein.

Section 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complele this project;
Community Development Block Grant $950,000.00
TOTAL $950,000.00

Section 4, The following amounts are appropriated for the project:

C-1 Rohabilitation $855,000.00
C-1 Administration $95.000.00
TOTAL $950,000.00

Section 5. The finance officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Grant Project Tund sufficient specific detailed
accounting records to provide the accounting to the grantor agency required by the grant agreement and federal and state
regulations,

Scetion 6, Tunds may be advanced from the General Funds for the purpose of making paymenis as due. Reimbursement
requests should be made (o the grantor agency in an orderly and timely manner.

Section 7. The finance officer is directed to report annually on the financial status of cach project element in Section 4
and on the total grant revenues received or claimed.

Section 8, The budget officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs and revenues on this gran
project in every budget submission made to this board,

Section 9. Copies of thiy gzrant project ordinance shall be made available to the budget officer and the finance officor for

direction in carrying out this project.

Adopted this 21% day of March, 2023,

Charles Kemp, Mayor
Name, Title

GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE
XAGran\CDBG-NRFm22 Grani Project Ordinance.docx






L\%W e V-8

Memorandum for Record

TO: Mayor and Commissioners, Town of Fairmont
FROM: Jerome Chestnut, Town Manager

DATE: March 16, 2023

REF: Stormwater Planning Grant (Tab 5-B)

Background

On February 21, 2023, the Town of Fairmont was approved for a $350,000 Grant for Stormwater
Planning,

Why is this grant important?

First and most importantly, this grant will help us plan in more detail on how to handle
stormwater issues during heavy rain periods, storms, and hurricanes. This grant is key to our
future, especially now with the development we have going on around town. The more
properties that are developed with facilities and pavement increases our chances of localized
flooding if we do not properly plan on how to handle our stormwater runoff, This grant will also
study how we can prevent stormwater from entering our wastewater (sewer) system.

We were one of three towns in the County to receive funding from the latest round of funding
from the state.



CURRENT CURFEW QORDINANCE
\/"" Qd

ARTTURTOE e L e
§ 132.04 CURFEW FOR MINORS. '

(A) The purpose of this section shall be to establish a curfew for minors in the Town of
Fairmont, thus promoting the health, safety and welfare of both minors and adults in the town by
creating an environment offering protection and security for all concerned.

{B) Forthe purpose of this section, the following definitions shall apply unless the context
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.

ADOLESCENT MINOR. A minor as defined herein who has reached his or her sixteenth
birthday, but has not reached his or her eighteenth birthday.

GUARDIAN. One who legally has the care and management of the person defined as a
minor by this section.

JUVENILE MINOR. A minor as defined herein who has not reached his or her sixteenth
birthday.

MINOR. A perscon who has not reached his or her eighteenth birthday and is not married,
emancipated or a member of the armed services of the United States. MINOR shall include
juvenile minors and adolescent minors.

PUBLIC PLACE. Areas such as, but not limited to, all common areas open to all for
common use; alleys, streets, public areas, highways, parks; establishments open to the public
for the conduct of business.

(C} This section does not apply to a minor who is:
(1) Accompanied by the minor's parent or guardian;

(2) Engaged in an employment activity, or going to or returning heme from an employment
activity, without any detour or stop;

(3) Involved in an emergency;

(4) Attending an official school, religious or other recreational activity supervised by adults
and sponsored by the town, a civic organization or another similar entity that takes responsibility
for the minor, or going to or returning home from, without any detour or stop, and official school,
religious or other recreational activity supervised by adults and sponsorad by the town, a civic
organization or another similar entity that takes responsibility for the minor; or

{5) Married or had been married or had disabilities of minority removed in accordance with
state law.

(D) A curfew applicable to minors is established and shall be enforced as follows:

(1) Time limits. Itis unlawful for any juvenile minor to be or remain upon any public place
as defined in this chapter in the town between 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on Monday through
Sunday. It shall be unlawful for any adolescent minor to be or remain upon any public place as
defined in this chapter in the town between midnight and 6:00 a.m. on Monday through Sunday.

(2) Exceptions. The restrictions provided by division {C){1) above shali not apply to any
minor who is accompanied by a guardian or other person charged with the care and custody of
a minor, nor shall the restriction apply to any minor who is traveling between his or her home or
place of employment, church, municipal building or school where a function is being heid.



CURRENT CURFEW ORDINANCE

(3) Responsibility of adults. 1tis unlawful for any parent, guardian or other person charged
with the care and custody of any minor to allow or permit a minor to be in or upon a public place
within the town within the curfew hours set by division (C)1) except as otherwise provided in
division (C)(2).

(4) Responsibility of business establishments. It is unlawful for any person, firm or
corporation operating a place of business or amusement to allow or permit any minor to remain
in or upon any place of business or amusement operated by them within the curfew hours set by
division (C)(1), except as otherwise provided in division (C)(2).

(5} Enforcement.

{a) When a minor is found to be in violation of this section, the officer will check the
curfew file located at the Police Department in the dispatcher’s office to see if the juvenile is a
first offender. If the juvenile is a first offender, he or she will be taken to the residence of his or
her parent or guardian. A written warning will be given to that adult and an information report will
be taken by the officer to include the name of the juvenile and adult, the time, date and location
of the offense. This report will be kept in the curfew policy file and a copy of the report will be
forwarded to the town’s juvenile detective.

(b) If, upon checking the curfew policy file, the juvenile is found to be a repeat offender,
he or she will be taken to the residence of his or her parent or guardian and the adult will be
subject to a criminal citation pursuant to division {C)(8) of this section. A report will be turned in
to the curfew policy file and a copy forwarded to the town’s juvenile detective.

{c) Ifthe juvenile is under 12 years of age, a report will be made and a copy forwarded to
the Robeson County Department of Social Services.

(8) Aiding and abelting by adult or guardian. It shall be a violation of this section for an
adult, guardian or parent to allow, permit, encourage, aid or abet a minor in the violation of
division (C)1) of this section except otherwise provided in division (C){(2).

{7) Refusal of guardian or parent to fake custody of a minor. If any guardian or parent
refuses to take custody of his or her minor found in violation of this section, the officer(s) with
custody of the minor shall contact the Robeson County Department of Social Services and
release the minar to that agency, pending further investigation by the Police Department and the
Department of Sccial Services. The adult will be subject to criminal citation pursuant to division
(C)(B) of this section.

(1988 Code, § 13-54) (Am. Ord. 06-104, passed 11-21-2006) Penalty, see § 132.99
§ 132.99 PENALTY.

(A} Any person violating any provision of this chapter for which no specific penalty is
prescribed shall be subject to the provisions of § 10.99.

(B) The punishment for violation of § 132.04 shall be a fine of up to $50 and/or imprisonment
up to 30 days.



PROPOSED REVISED CURFEW

§ 132.04 CURFEW FOR MINORS.

(A) The purpose of this section shall be to establish a curfew for minors in the Town of
Fairmont, thus promoting the health, safety and welfare of both minors and adults in the town by
creating an environment offering protection and security for all concerned.

(B) Forthe purpose of this section, the following definitions shall apply unless the context
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.

ADOLESCENT MINOR. A minor as defined herein who has reached his or her sixteenth
birthday, but has not reached his or her eighteenth birthday.

GUARDIAN. One who legally has the care and management of the person defined as a
minor by this section.

JUVENILE MINOR. A minor as defined herein who has not reached his or her sixteenth
birthday.

MINOR. A person who has not reached his or her eighteenth birthday and is not married,
emancipated or a member of the armed services of the United States. MINOR shall include
juvenile minors and adolescent minors.

PUBLIC PLACE. Areas such as, but not limited to, all common areas open to all for
common use; alleys, streets, public areas, highways, parks; establishments open to the public
for the conduct of business.

(C) This section does not apply to a minor who is:
(1) Accompanied by the minor’'s parent or guardian;

(2) Engaged in an employment activity, or going to or returning home from an employment
activity, without any detour or stop;

(3) Involved in an emergency;

(4) Attending an official school, religious or other recreational activity supervised by adults
and sponsored by the town, a civic organization or another similar entity that takes responsibility
for the minor, or going to or returning home from, without any detour or stop, and official school,
religious or other recreational activity supervised by adults and sponsored by the town, a civic
organization or another similar entity that takes responsibility for the minor; or

(5) Married or had been married or had disabilities of minority removed in accordance with
state law.

(D) A curfew applicable to minors is established and shall be enforced as follows:

(1) Time limits. It is unlawful for any juvenile minor to be or remain upon any public place
as defined in this chapter in the town between 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on Monday through
Sunday. It shall be unlawful for any adolescent minor to be or remain upon any public place as
defined in this chapter in the town between midnight and 6:00 a.m. on Monday through Sunday.

(2) Exceptions. The restrictions provided by division (C)(1) above shall not apply to any
minor who is accompanied by a guardian or other person charged with the care and custody of
a minor, nor shall the restriction apply to any minor who is traveling between his or her home or
place of employment, church, municipal building or school where a function is being held.



PROPOSED REVISED CURFEW

(3) Responsibility of adults. Itis unlawful for any parent, guardian or other person charged
with the care and custody of any minor to allow or permit a minor to be in or upon a public place
within the town within the curfew hours set by division (C)(1) except as otherwise provided in
division (C)(2).

(4) Responsibility of business establishments. It is unlawful for any person, firm or
corporation operating a place of business or amusement to allow or permit any minor to remain
in or upon any place of business or amusement operated by them within the curfew hours set by
division (C)(1), except as otherwise provided in division (C)(2).

(5) Enforcement.

(a) When a minor is found to be in violation of this section, the officer will check the
computer files located at the Police Department to see if the juvenile is a first offender. If the
juvenile is a first offender, he or she will be taken to the residence of his or her parent or
guardian. A warning will be given to that adult and an information report will be taken by the
officer to include the name of the juvenile and adult, the time, date and location of the offense.
This report will be kept in the computer files at the Police Department.

(b) If, upon checking the computer files, the juvenile is found to be a repeat offender, he
or she will be taken to the residence of his or her parent or guardian and the adult will be subject
to a criminal citation pursuant to division (C)(6) of this section. A report will be turned in to the
office and it will be reviewed by the Fairmont Police Chief on his designee for possible
referral to the Robeson County Juvenile Justice office.

(c) If the juvenile is under 12 years of age, a report will be made and a copy forwarded to
the Robeson County Department of Social Services.

(6) Aiding and abetting by adult or guardian. It shall be a violation of this section for an
adult, guardian or parent to allow, permit, encourage, aid or abet a minor in the violation of
division (C)(1) of this section except otherwise provided in division (C)(2).

(7) Refusal of guardian or parent to take custody of a minor. If any guardian or parent
refuses to take custody of his or her minor found in violation of this section, the officer(s) with
custody of the minor shall contact the Robeson County Department of Social Services and
release the minor to that agency, pending further investigation by the Police Department and the
Department of Social Services. The adult will be subject to criminal citation pursuant to division
(C)(6) of this section.

Penalty

(A) The criminal offense for violation of of this section shall be Contributing to the
Delinquency of a Minor, as stated in NC GS 14-316.1

(B) The civil punishment for violation of § 132.04 shall be a fine of up to $100

(1988 Code, § 13-54) (Am. Ord. 06-104, passed 11-21-2006)



